
 
 

Loleta Union ESD   700 Loleta Dr., Loleta CA 95551   loletaschool.org   707.733.5705 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Regular Meeting 

December 8, 2022 5:30 pm 
AGENDA 

 
The Loleta Union Elementary School District Board of Education meetings are open 
to the public, except for certain subjects that are addressed in closed session in 
accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Members of the public may attend at 
Loleta Elementary School in order to observe and provide public comment during 
the meeting.  
 
The board meeting room will remain open during the meeting for those members 
of the public who wish to attend the meeting and/or make public comment. 
However, the Board may limit the number of individuals in the board meeting 
room at any one time pursuant to guidance from public health officials. If anyone 
wishes to attend and requires special accommodations due to a handicapping 
condition, as outlined in the Americans with Disabilities Act,  please contact the 
Superintendent at least two working days prior to the meeting.  
 

1. OPENING OF MEETING 
Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 
6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22, which is distributed 
to all or a majority of the members of the governing body by any person in 
connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open 
meeting of the board is available for public inspection at the district office, 700 
Loleta Drive, Loleta, CA 95551 
 
1.1 Call to Order 
1.2 Roll Call 
1.3 Approval of the Agenda, including the Consent Agenda 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 



All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered by the Board to be 
routine and will be enacted by the Board in one action. There will be no discussion 
of these items prior to the time the Board votes on the motion, unless members of 
the Board request specific items be discussed.  
 
2.1 Approve Board Minutes (11.10.2022)     Action Item  
2.2 Review November Warrant Reports     Action Item  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
not on the agenda and within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Per the 
Brown Act the Board does not act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of 
any item presented. In the case of numerous requests to address the same subject, 
the Board may select representatives to speak on each item. Proper decorum is 
required at all times. Speakers will be required to step down for improper 
language or if improper topics or closed session items are discussed. In accordance 
with Board policy, speakers are to keep comments concise and limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker and a total of twenty (20) minutes per issue.  
 
INFORMATION OR ACTION ITEMS 
Members of the public may address the Board regarding an agenda item before 
the presentation has been made. There will be a time limit of three (3) minutes per 
person per item. There will be a total time limit of twenty (20) minutes per agenda 
item. The discussion of the agenda item will take place after the public comments 
and will be limited to the Governance Team. The Board President may move any 
agenda time to a different place on the agenda in order to accommodate the 
public or improve the flow of the meeting.  
 

4. REPORTS 
4.1 Employee Group/Staff Report(s) (CSEA, CTA) if any  Information Item 
4.2 Board Report, if any       Information Item 
4.3. LCRC Report        Information Item 
 

5. ADMINISTRATION, POLICY and GOVERNANCE 
5.1 Elect Board President       Action Item 
5.2 Elect Board Clerk       Action Item 
5.3 Adopt BP/AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination    Action Item 



6.  BUSINESS and LOCAL CONTROL 
6.1 Approval and Certification of First Interim Budget  Action Item 
 

7. INSTRUCTION and STUDENT SERVICES  
7.1 Approve Job Description New Classified Position  Action Item 
7.2 Consider Proposal to Increase .75 FTE position to 1.0 FTE Action Item 
   

8. FACILITIES and TRANSPORTATION 
 

9. COMMUNITY and CORRESPONDENCE  
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
10.1 Interdistrict Transfer Requests      
10.2 Personnel: Discipline, Dismissal, Release, Evaluation of Performance 
(Government Code Section 54957) 
10.3 Liability Claims (Government Code Section 54956.95) and/or Conference 
with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government Code Section  54956.9) 
10.4 Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representative: Linda Row, Superintendent 
Employee Organization: CTA/NEA  
 

11.  RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Report out any action taken in closed session 
 

12.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/TOPICS 
The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Thursday, January 12, 2023 
at 5:30 pm. 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
    
   
 
 
 

  



 
 
Agenda Item: 2.1 
 
Subject: Approve Board Minutes from 11.10.2022 meeting 
 
Background: Approval of these draft Minutes make them the formal 
Minutes from the November 10, 2022 meeting. 
 
Previous Board Action: The Board approves the minutes of the previous 
meeting at most Board meetings.  
 
Fiscal Implications: None 
 
Recommendation: Approve the Board meeting minutes from November 
10, 2022. 
 
 
 



Minutes 11.10.22       1 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Regular Meeting 

November 10, 2022 5:30 pm 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
The Loleta Union Elementary School District Board of Education meetings are open 
to the public, except for certain subjects that are addressed in closed session in 
accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Members of the public may attend at 
Loleta Elementary School in order to observe and provide public comment during 
the meeting.  
 
The board meeting room will remain open during the meeting for those members 
of the public who wish to attend the meeting and/or make public comment. 
However, the Board may limit the number of individuals in the board meeting 
room at any one time pursuant to guidance from public health officials. If anyone 
wishes to attend and requires special accommodations due to a handicapping 
condition, as outlined in the Americans with Disabilities Act,  please contact the 
Superintendent at least two working days prior to the meeting.  
 

1. OPENING OF MEETING 
Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 
6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22, which is distributed 
to all or a majority of the members of the governing body by any person in 
connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open 
meeting of the board is available for public inspection at the district office, 700 
Loleta Drive, Loleta, CA 95551 
 
1.1 Call to Order 
1.2 Roll Call 
1.3 Approval of the Agenda, including the Consent Agenda 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered by the Board to be 
routine and will be enacted by the Board in one action. There will be no discussion 



Minutes 11.10.22       2 

of these items prior to the time the Board votes on the motion, unless members of 
the Board request specific items be discussed.  
 
2.1 Approve Board Minutes (10.13.2022)     Action Item  
2.2 October Warrant Reports       Action Item 
 
The meeting commenced at 5:30 pm. Board President Charmin Bailey was 
present, along with Trustees Perez and Shewry. Trustees Rivera and Sand were 
absent. Trustee Perez moved to approve the agenda, including the consent 
agenda. Trustee Shewry seconded the motion and the motion passed 3-0.  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
not on the agenda and within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Per the 
Brown Act the Board does not act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of 
any item presented. In the case of numerous requests to address the same subject, 
the Board may select representatives to speak on each item. Proper decorum is 
required at all times. Speakers will be required to step down for improper 
language or if improper topics or closed session items are discussed. In accordance 
with Board policy, speakers are to keep comments concise and limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker and a total of twenty (20) minutes per issue.  
 
Teachers, former employees and a parent from the District offered public 
comment.  
 
INFORMATION OR ACTION ITEMS 
Members of the public may address the Board regarding an agenda item before 
the presentation has been made. There will be a time limit of three (3) minutes per 
person per item. There will be a total time limit of twenty (20) minutes per agenda 
item. The discussion of the agenda item will take place after the public comments 
and will be limited to the Governance Team. The Board President may move any 
agenda time to a different place on the agenda in order to accommodate the 
public or improve the flow of the meeting.  
 

4. REPORTS 
4.1 Superintendent/Principal’s Report     Information Item 



Minutes 11.10.22       3 

4.2 Employee Group/Staff Report(s) (CSEA, CTA)   Information Item 
4.3 Board Report        Information Item 
 

5.  BUSINESS and LOCAL CONTROL 
5.1 Interdistrict Transfer Agreement for 2023-2024   Action Item 
 
Trustee Perez moved to approve the District’s participation in the county-wide 
Interdistrict Transfer Agreement for the 2023-2024 school year. Trustee Shewry 
seconded the motion and the motion passed 3-0. 
 

6. ADMINISTRATION, POLICY and GOVERNANCE 
6.1 Revisit AB 361 Remote Meeting Option    Action Item 
6.2 Select Representative to Serve on County Delegation  Action Item 
6.3 Loleta Teachers’ Association Initial Proposal to District Information Item 
 
Board President Charmin Bailey moved to table item 6.1 as the Trustee who had 
asked that it be on the agenda was absent. Trustee Perez seconded the motion 
and the motion passed 3-0.  
 
Trustee Glen Shewry nominated Trustee Christina Perez to serve on the county 
delegation (item 6.2). Board President Charmin Bailey seconded the motion and 
the motion passed 3-0.  
 
 

7. INSTRUCTION and STUDENT SERVICES  
7.1 Adoption of Science Instructional Materials   Action Item 
7.2 Adoption of Social Studies Instructional Materials  Action Item 
7.3 Williams Annual Report      Information Item 
 
Trustee Glen Shewry moved to approve the adoption of Science instructional 
materials and Trustee Christina Perez seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-
0.  
 
Trustee Glen Shewry moved to approve the adoption of Social Studies 
instructional materials and Trustee Christina Perez seconded the motion. The 
motion passed 3-0. 
   



Minutes 11.10.22       4 

8. FACILITIES and TRANSPORTATION 
 

9. COMMUNITY and CORRESPONDENCE  
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
10.1 Interdistrict Transfer Requests      
10.2 Personnel: Discipline, Dismissal, Release, Evaluation of Performance 
(Government Code Section 54957) 
10.3 Liability Claims (Government Code Section 54956.95) and/or Conference 
with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government Code Section  54956.9) 
10.4 Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representative: Linda Row, Superintendent 
Employee Organization: CTA/NEA  
 
The Board moved to closed session at 6:23 pm. 
 

11.  RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Report out any action taken in closed session 
 
The Board reconvened to open session at 7:18 pm. There were no actions taken 
during closed session. The  meeting was adjourned at 7:19 pm. 
 

12.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/TOPICS 
The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Thursday, December 8, 2022 
at 5:30 pm. 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
Agenda Item: 2.2 
 
Subject: November Warrant Report 
 
Background: The Warrant Report shows a list of payments made in the 
previous month. Any expenditures that are out of the ordinary are explained 
in the table below.  
 
Previous Board Action: The Board reviews and approves the Warrant 
Report from the previous month at most Board meetings.  
 
Fiscal Implications: Expenditures listed were paid out in the month shown 
on the report.  
 
Recommendation: Approve the Warrant Report as part of the Consent 
Agenda.  
 

Item Number Vendor Description 

9 Division of Narva Enterprises Automatic Defibrillator Device rental 

14 Mendes Cleaning Supplies 

17 PG&E Overlapping invoices all paid 

25 AALRR Professional Corp Reference Book  
 







 
Agenda Item: 4.2 
 
Subject: Loleta Community Resource Center Report 
 
Background: This report covers the activities of the LCRC for the months 
of September and October. 
 
Previous Board Action:  N/A 
 
Fiscal Implications: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Information only 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

   
 

 

LOLETA COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
September – November, 2022 Report 

First 5 Playgroup 
 
During these last three months we had 

177 encounters with parents and 

children during playgroup.  Parents and 
kids love to come to our Loleta 
playgroup to connect, play, sing, dance 
and have a cup of coffee! Come and 
join the fun!! 

               
 

Diaper Program 
 

Sep-Nov we distributed 106 boxes of 

diapers and 240 bags of wipes for children 
under age 5 to subsidize some of the 
number of diapers that they need in a 

month.  

 

Dental Services 
 

Families are welcome to call us to 
access free dental services for 

children and adults. 
707 733-5239 

 
Smile Dental Services and Burre Dental 

Services will be providing services to our Loleta 
community and neighboring communities 

 
 

 
 

School Clothes 
 

Community families and school 
children are welcome to visit our 
center if they need a change of 

clothes or shoes for children (not all 
sizes available 

                           



   
 

   
 

 
Community Garden 

 
We had our first meeting to plan the 

2023 garden season 
 

 

Shoes Donations Welcome 
 

We are still taking donations of gently 
used clothes, shoes, sandals, and flip 
flops of all sizes for children in our 
school and our community 

 
 
 

Weekend Backpack Program 
Weekly nonperishable food bags are 
currently distributed to only 10 kids 

in our school due to low funding.   
Program started on October 5th.  We 

have distributed 80 bags so far. 

 

Loleta Food Pantry 

Sept - November, we served 219 

households and 745 individuals with 
nonperishable food boxes, produce, and 

hygiene supplies. 

 
 



   
 

   
 

 

 

 

Holiday Program 

We will be able to 
provide holiday food 
bags and toys to 75 
households in our 

community 

 

PG&E Assistance 

Thanks to the 
Housing is Key grant 
we were able to help 

households who 
were struggling with 

their PG&E bills.  
$2,718 has been 

provided to our local 
families in PG&E 

assistance.  
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
Agenda Item: 5.1 
 
Subject:  Elect Board President  
 
Background: School boards are obligated to hold an organizational 
meeting each December to elect officers for the coming year. The attached 
handout describes the role of the Board President.  
 
Previous Board Action: Each December the Board votes to elect a 
president.  
 
Fiscal Implications: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Nominate and elect one Trustee to serve as Board 
President for the 2023 calendar year.  
 
 
 











 
 
Agenda Item: 5.2 
 
Subject:  Elect Board Clerk  
 
Background: School boards are obligated to hold an organizational 
meeting each December to elect officers for the coming year. One of the 
officers to be elected is the Board Clerk. 
 
Previous Board Action: Each December the Board votes to elect a Clerk.  
 
Fiscal Implications: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Nominate and elect one Trustee to serve as Board 
Clerk for the 2023 calendar year.  
 
 
 



 
 
Agenda Item: 5.3 
 
Subject:  Adopt BP/AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
Background: School districts are required to have a 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment policy in place. The Board has most likely 
previously approved this board policy and regulation, but copies can’t be 
found. It is best to re-adopt the policy and regulation so that we have it in 
place. The Board Policy describes what the district will do; the 
Administrative Regulation describes how we will do it.  
 
Previous Board Action:  Unknown 
 
Fiscal Implications: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Adopt Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 
5145.3  
 
 
 



Loleta Union Elementary School District 
 
Policy 5145.3: Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 
access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support 
programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, 
unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, 
targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, 
ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status,,, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, 
age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression or genetic information, or association 
with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 

This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring 
within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or 
school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at 
school. 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may 
result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed 
above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through 
prohibited conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to 
participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, 
threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or 
unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a 
student's educational opportunities. 



Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the 
categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs 
or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services. 

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or 
participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a 
complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report 
discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same manner as a 
discrimination complaint. 

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by 
publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 
parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope 
and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the 
school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The 
Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's 
nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 
identified barrier to student access to or participation in the educational program. He/she shall 
report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal 
filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the 
discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students. 

Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative 
regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include 



suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 
48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including dismissal. 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 

Record-Keeping 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful 
discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the 
district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools. 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 
ADOPTED: December 8, 2022 



Loleta Union Elementary School District 

Regulation 5145.3: Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's efforts to comply with applicable state and federal civil rights laws, 
including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 
and to answer inquiries regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall 
also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
as the responsible employee to handle complaints alleging unlawful discrimination targeting a 
student, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, based on the student's 
actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, nationality national origin, immigration status, 
ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, pregnancy, 
physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
genetic information or any other legally protected status; or association with a person or group 
with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance 
officer(s) may be contacted at: (Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621) 

Superintendent/Principal 

700 Loleta Drive 

Loleta, CA 95551 

(707) 733-5705 

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

Measures to Prevent Discrimination 

To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
retaliation, and bullying, of students at district schools or in school activities and to ensure equal 
access of all students to the educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall implement 
the following measures: 

1. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 
parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, and the general public by posting them on the district's 
web site and other prominent locations that are easily accessible to students. (Education Code 
234.1) 



(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

2. Post in a prominent and conspicuous location on the district and school web sites information 
regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's sex, gender, gender 
identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including the following: (Education code 221.61) 

a. The name and contact information of the district's Title IX coordinator, including the phone 
number and email address 

b. The rights of students and the public and the responsibilities of the district under Title IX, 
including a list of rights as specified in Education Code 221.8 and web links to information about 
those rights and responsibilities located on the web sites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and 
the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) 

c. A description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance with Title IX in accordance with 
AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, which shall include: 

(1) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be filed after an 
alleged incident of discrimination has occurred and how a complaint may be filed beyond the 
statute of limitations 

(2) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may 
further pursue the complaint, including web links to this information on the OCR's web site 

(3) A web link to the OCR complaints form and the contact information for the office, including 
the phone number and email address for the office 

3. Provide to students a handbook that contains age-appropriate information that clearly 
describes the district's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and resources 
available to students who feel that they have been the victim of any such behavior. (Education 
Code 234.1) 

4. Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the district's nondiscrimination policy, 
including its responsibility to provide a safe, nondiscriminatory school environment for all 
students, including transgender and gender-nonconforming students. The notice shall inform 
students and parents/guardians request to meet with the compliance officer to determine how 
best to accommodate or resolve concerns that may arise from the district's implementation of its 
nondiscrimination policies. The notice shall also inform all students and parents/guardians that, 
to the extent possible, the district will address any individual student's interests and concerns in 
private. 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 



5. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students and parents/guardians, including 
those with limited English proficiency, are notified of how to access the relevant information 
provided in the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, notices, and 
forms in a language they can understand. 

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary 
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning 
nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in accordance with Education Code 
234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant 
information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

6. Provide to students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate training and 
information regarding the district's nondiscrimination policy; what constitutes prohibited 
discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying; how 
and to whom a report of an incident should be made; and how to guard against segregating or 
stereotyping students when providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to 
them. Such training and information shall include details of guidelines the district may use to 
provide a discrimination-free environment for all district students, including transgender and 
gender-nonconforming students. 

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

7. At the beginning of each school year, inform school employees that any employee who 
witnesses any act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying, against a student is required to intervene if it is safe to do so. (Education Code 
234.1) 

8. At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal or designee of the district's 
responsibility to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect students from threatened 
or potentially discriminatory behavior and ensure their privacy rights. 

Enforcement of District Policy 

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 - 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment. As needed, these actions may include any of the following: 

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti 



(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 

2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize unlawful 
discrimination and how to respond 

3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding unlawful 
discrimination 

4. Consistent with laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records, 
communicating to students, parents/guardians, and the community the school's response plan to 
unlawful discrimination or harassment 

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against perpetrators and anyone determined to have 
engaged in wrongdoing, including any student who is found to have made a complaint of 
discrimination that he/she knew was not true 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints 

Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to unlawful discrimination described above 
or in district policy is strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance officer, 
principal, or any other staff member. In addition, any student who observes any such incident is 
strongly encouraged to report the incident to the compliance officer or principal, whether or not 
the alleged victim files a complaint. 

Any school employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident is 



reported shall report the incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day, 
whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 

Any school employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene to 
stop the incident when it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1) 

When any report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
retaliation, or bullying, is submitted to or received by the principal or compliance officer, he/she 
shall inform the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal complaint pursuant to the 
provisions in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. Any report of unlawful 
discrimination involving the principal, compliance officer, or any other person to whom the 
complaint would ordinarily be reported or filed shall instead be submitted to the Superintendent 
or designee. Even if the student chooses not to file a formal complaint, the principal or 
compliance officer shall implement immediate measures necessary to stop the discrimination and 
to ensure all students have access to the educational program and a safe school environment. 

Upon receiving a complaint of discrimination, the compliance officer shall immediately 
investigate the complaint in accordance with the district's uniform complaint procedures 
specified in AR 1312.3. 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students 

Gender identity means a student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior, whether or 
not that gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally 
associated with the student's physiology or assigned sex at birth. 

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether 
stereotypically associated with the student's assigned sex at birth. (Education Code 210.7) 

Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as 
the sex assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the 
student's gender identity. 

Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from 
stereotypical expectations. 

Transgender student means a student whose gender identity or gender expression is different 
from that traditionally associated with the assigned sex at birth. 

Acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, 
gender identity, or gender expression, regardless of whether they are sexual in nature, where the 



act has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's academic performance 
or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment are prohibited under 
state and federal law. Examples of the types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and 
which may constitute gender-based harassment include, but are not limited to: 

1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with the student's gender 
identity 

2. Disciplining or disparaging a transgender student because the student's mannerisms, hairstyle, 
or style of dress correspond to the student's gender identity, or a non-transgender student because 
the student's mannerisms, hairstyle, or style of dress do not conform to stereotypes for the 
student's gender or are perceived as indicative of the other sex 

3. Blocking a student's entry to the restroom that corresponds to the student's gender identity 
because the student is transgender or gender-nonconforming 

4. Taunting a student because he/she participates in an athletic activity more typically favored by 
a student of the other sex 

5. Revealing a student's transgender status to individuals who do not have a legitimate need for 
the information 

6. Use of gender-specific slurs 

7. Physical assault of a student motivated by hostility toward him/her because of the student's 
gender, gender identity, or gender expression 

The district's uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) shall be used to report and resolve 
complaints alleging discrimination against transgender and gender-nonconforming students. 

Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list as well as 
improper rejection by the district of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to 
facilities that correspond with a student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's 
transgender status, discriminatory enforcement of a dress code, and other instances of gender-
based harassment. 

To ensure that transgender and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights, 
benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district shall 
address each situation on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines: 

1. Right to privacy: A student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is the student's 
private information and the district will only disclose the information to others with the student's 
prior written consent, except when the disclosure is otherwise required by law or when the 
district has compelling evidence that disclosure is necessary to preserve the student's physical or 



mental well-being. In the latter instance, the district shall limit disclosure to individuals 
reasonably believed to be able to protect the student's well-being. Any district employee to 
whom a student discloses the student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status shall seek 
the student's permission to notify the compliance officer. If the student refuses to give 
permission, the employee shall keep the student's information confidential, unless he/she is 
required to disclose or report the student's information pursuant to this administrative regulation, 
and shall inform the student that honoring the student's request may limit the district's ability to 
meet the student's needs related to the student's status as a transgender or gender-nonconforming 
student. If the student permits the employee to notify the compliance officer, the employee shall 
do so within three school days. 

As appropriate given the student's need for support, the compliance officer may discuss with the 
student any need to disclose the student's transgender or gender-nonconformity status or gender 
identity or gender expression to the student's parents/guardians and/or others, including other 
students, teacher(s), or other adults on campus. The district shall offer support services, such as 
counseling, to students who wish to inform their parents/guardians of their status and desire 
assistance in doing so. 

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The compliance officer shall accept the student's 
assertion of the student's gender identity unless district personnel present a credible and 
supportable basis for believing that the student's assertion is for an improper purpose. 

3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The compliance officer shall arrange a meeting with 
the student and, if appropriate, the student's parents/guardians to identify and to develop 
strategies for ensuring that the student's access to education programs and activities is 
maintained. The meeting shall discuss the transgender or gender- nonconforming student's rights 
and how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other students and shall address 
specific subjects related to the student's access to facilities and to academic or educational 
support programs, services, or activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other 
competitive endeavors. In addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school site 
employee(s) to whom the student may report any problem related to the student's status as a 
transgender or gender-nonconforming individual, so that prompt action can be taken to address 
it. Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form a support team 
for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the arrangements for the student are 
meeting the student's educational needs and providing equal access to programs and activities, 
educate appropriate staff about the student's transition, and serve as a resource to the student to 
better protect the student from gender-based discrimination. 



4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities: When the district 
maintains sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, and sex-segregated 
programs and activities, such as physical education classes, intramural sports, and interscholastic 
athletic programs, students shall be permitted to access facilities and participate in programs and 
activities consistent with their gender identity. To address any student's privacy concerns in 
using sex-segregated facilities, the district shall offer available options such as a gender-neutral 
or single-use restroom or changing area, a bathroom stall with a door, an area in the locker room 
separated by a curtain or screen, access to a staff member's office, or use of the locker room 
before or after the other students. However, the district shall not require a student to utilize these 
options because he/she is transgender or gender-nonconforming. In addition, a student shall be 
permitted to participate in accordance with the student's gender identity in other circumstances 
where students are separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook pictures, and 
field trips. A student's right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with the 
student's gender identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other eligibility rule 
established for participation in the activity. 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 

5. Student Records: A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student record 
required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed with proper documentation. However, at 
the written request of a student or, if appropriate, the student's parents/guardians, the district shall 
use the student's preferred name and pronouns consistent with the request on all other district-
related documents. Such preferred name may be added to the student's record and official 
documents as permitted by law. 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 

6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to address 
the student by a name and the pronouns consistent with the student's gender identity, without the 
necessity of a court order or a change to the student's official district record. However, 
inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by district personnel in the use of the student's name and/or 
consistent pronouns will, in general, not constitute a violation of this administrative regulation or 
the accompanying district policy. 



7. Uniforms/Dress Code: A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with the 
student's gender identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site. 

(cf. 5132 - Dress Code) 

ADOPTED December 8, 2022 



 
 
Agenda Item: 6.1 
 
Subject: Approval and Certification of First Interim Budget 
 
Background: Education Code Section 42130 et seq. requires a first period 
(10/31) and second period (1/31) interim financial report. Each district 
board must certify whether or not the district will be able to meet its 
financial obligations through the remainder of the fiscal year and 
subsequent fiscal years. 
 
Previous Board Action: The Board certifies the budget at least twice each 
year.  
 
Fiscal Implications: To be discussed in the meeting.  
 
Recommendation: Approve and certify the first interim budget.  
 
 
 

















 

Agenda Item: 7.1  

Subject: Approve Job Description for New Classified Position   

Background: In April 2022 the District entered into a partnership agreement 
(attached) with the Wiyot Tribe for their grant application for the Humboldt 
Bay Youth Community Project. The Tribe has been awarded a federal grant 
to improve the college and career readiness of Native youth. The terms of the 
partnership agreement specify that Loleta will employ a full-time Indian 
Education site lead, paid for by the Tribe with the federal grant funds. The 
term of the grant is five years.  

The attached draft job description was adapted from the Indian Education 
Coordinator position at Northern Humboldt Union High School District. The 
draft has been shared with representatives of Loleta’s classified union, the 
NCIDC, the Bear River education director, the Wiyot Tribe youth programs 
department, and True North for their input.  

Previous Board Action: N/A 

Fiscal Implications:  The total cost of the employee is estimated to be 
approximately $60,000 including salary, health and welfare benefits, 
retirement and statutory benefits. The salary will be prorated for the 
remainder of the 2022-2023 school year. The District will invoice the Tribe in 
advance for the grant funds so that we avoid paying for the employee up 
front and asking for reimbursement.  

Recommendation: Approve the draft Indian Education Specialist job 
description.  



Loleta Union Elementary School District 
Indian Education Specialist 

Job Description 
 

Job Summary: 
Under the direction of the Superintendent/Principal, the Indian Education Specialist has shared 
responsibility for the development and implementation of the Loleta Indian Education program to 
improve student outcomes for Native American students.  
 
Major Duties: 

● Collaborate to develop a robust Indian Education program at Loleta Elementary School with a 
focus on student leadership development and a strong academic preparation for success in 
high school and beyond 

● Monitor student academic progress and act as a liaison with students, teachers and parents 
● Oversee tutorial services for students primarily in math and reading  
● Assist with budget preparation, monitoring and reporting for grant-related activities 
● Assist in data collection for accountability measures 
● Assist with planning and facilitation of Native American Parent Advisory Committee (NAPAC) 

meetings 
● Act as liaison with community agencies providing cultural, advocacy, academic, vocational, 

and other special services to Indian Education participants 
● Serve on district committees (LCAP, Safety etc) as appropriate  
● Assist with student supervision and support activities 
● Coordinate transportation for students to special activities 
● Seek out innovative approaches by coordinating with other education programs 

 
Qualifications: 

● High school diploma 
● AA degree or two years of college education 
● Valid California driver’s license 
● Familiarity with the cultures and traditions of of the Native American tribes of Northwest 

California 
 

Loleta Union Elementary School District is an Equal Opportunity Employer 
In accordance with Federal civil rights law, civil rights regulations and policies, the Loleta Union 
Elementary School District, its offices, and employees, are prohibited from discriminating based on 
age, ancestry, color, disability, ethnicity, gender, gender expression, gender identity, immigration 
status, marital status, nationality, parental status, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
political beliefs, or association with a person or a group with one or more of these actual or perceived 
characteristics, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity. 
 
 
 







 

Agenda Item: 7.2 

Subject: Consider Proposal to Increase .75 FTE position to 1.0 FTE   

Background: The Community School Assistant position is currently a .75 FTE 
position, meaning that the employee works 30 hours per week and receives no health 
and welfare benefit. The position is currently funded entirely by the Community School 
Grant. There is an opportunity to increase the hours of this position to full time by using 
Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant funds. The Learning Recovery Emergency 
Block Grant funds may be used to establish initiatives through the 2027–28 school 
year that, at a minimum, support academic learning recovery and staff and pupil social 
and emotional well-being. 

One of the approved areas for the use of funds is integrating pupil supports to address 
other barriers to learning. Two-thirds (66.7%) of the staff who responded to an in-
house survey about the use of funds believe that grant funds should be used for the 
provision of health, counseling or mental health services for students. Two-thirds 
(66.7%) of the staff who responded to the survey believe that funds should be used for 
programs to address pupil trauma and social emotional learning, and 50% agreed that 
funds should be used for referrals to support family or pupil needs. All of these 
activities are embedded in the Community School Initiative.  

Previous Board Action: The Community School Assistant position was approved by 
the Board in June 2022.  

Fiscal Implications:  The cost of the increase for the remainder of the 2022-2023 
school year would be approximately $11,000 including salary, health and welfare 
benefits and statutory benefits 

Recommendation: Approve the increase of the Community School Assistant position 
to 1.0 FTE. 


	1.0 Meeting Agenda
	2.1 Cover Sheet
	2.1a Minutes
	2.2 Cover Sheet
	2.2a
	4.2 Cover Sheet
	4.2a LCRC report
	5.1 Cover Sheet
	5.1a
	5.2 Cover Sheet
	5.3 Cover Sheet
	5.3a BP 5145.3_ Nondiscrimination_Harassment
	5.3b AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination_Harrassment
	6.1 Cover Sheet
	6.1a
	7.1 Cover Sheet
	7.1a DRAFT Indian Education Specialist Job Description
	7.1bPartnership Agreement
	7.2 Cover Sheet

